Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Commissioners” Journal

2025, NINETH MEETING

CRAWFORD COUNTY COURTHOUSE, COMMISSIONERS” BOARD ROOM
Girard, KS. Friday, January 31, 2025 at 10:00 AM

The Crawford County Board of Commissioners met pursuant to Kansas Statutes.
Annotated Chapter 19, Article 2, Section 18 in due and regular session with open doors.
Commissioner Tom Moody served as the presiding officer.

Commissioners Bruce Blair and Carl Wood were in attendance.

County Clerk Lisa Lusker and County Counselor Jim Emerson were seated with the
Board.

Chairman Moody led the Pledge of Allegiance.

UNDER THE HEADING BUSINESS FROM A PREVIOUS MEETING
CONSENT AGENDA
On motion (25-056) of Commissioner Blair and the second of Commissioner Wood that
the consent agenda be approved including:
1. Approval of the January 28, 2025 minutes of the Board of County
Commissioners, and
2. Authorizing the Chairman to sign the previous week’s vouchers.
Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Blair and Wood
Nays:
Present but not voting:
Absent or not voting:
The motion prevailed and the consent agenda was approved.

SIGNING OF MOTIONS
The County Clerk presented the following motions for Commissioners’ signatures:

Motion 25 48 | That the consent agenda be approved including: Approval of the
January 24, 2025 minutes
Motion 25 49 | To approve the 2025 Rock Bids as recommended by Dennis Meier,

Triad Environmental Services

Motion 25 50 | To recess this open meeting and go into a closed executive session for

20 minutes to discuss the Health Department pursuant to the non-
elected personnel exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(1), to protect the
privacy of the individual employees. The County Commissioners,
County Counselor Jim Emerson, and Health Department Director

Page 1 of 7




Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Debra Anthony attended the executive session. The open meeting will
resume at 11:20 AM. The Motion passed 3-0

Motion 25

o1

To recess this open meeting and go into a closed executive session for
20 minutes to discuss the Health Department pursuant to the non-
elected personnel exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(1), to protect the
privacy of the individual employees. The County Commissioners,
County Counselor Jim Emerson, and Health Department Director
Debra Anthony attended the executive session. The open meeting will
resume at 11:43 AM. The Motion passed 3-0

Motion 25

52

To cancel the Regular Session of the Board of County Commissioners
on Friday, February 7, 2025 due to lack of quorum

Motion 25

53

To recess this open meeting and to go into a closed executive session
for 15 minutes for legal advice regarding an insurance claim and bids
which would be deemed privileged in the attorney-client relationship
pursuant to the consultation with attorney exception, K.S.A. 75-
4319(b)(2), with the County Commissioners and County Counselor
Jim Emerson present. The open meeting will resume at 12:13 P.M.
The motion passed 3-0

Motion 25

54

To accept the insurance settlement in the amount of $75,901.00

Motion 25

55

To approve the purchasing of a 2024 John Deere Tractor in the amount
of $131,028.92

UNDER THE HEADING NEW BUSINESS
PROCLAMATION AND ORDERS OF THE BOARD
MESSAGES FROM CRAWFORD CO LOCAL BOARD OF HEALTH
MESSAGES FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
MESSAGES FROM APPOINTED OFFICIALS
MESSAGES FROM ELECTED OFFICIALS

MESSAGES FROM THE PUBLIC

Item One: Mr. Jacob Cochran addressed the Commissioners. He stated he is currently
working with Mr. Derek Schmidt’s office and that he has some new contacts he will
share with the Commissioners through email.

Item Two: Mr. Craig Stokes addressed the Commissioners. He mentioned the discussion
they had with CARDS last week. Mr. Stokes stated he spoke with the CEO of Stella
Environmental Services which is the trucking company that CARDS contracts to haul
their trash. He gave some details regarding his discussions. Mr. Stokes gave information
regarding the transfer stations these trucks come from and also that the contact he was
discussing with told him they have purchased 11 new tarps to put on their trucks.
Commissioner Moody stated he wants to see some action after the previous conversation
that took place with CARDS. Commissioner Wood asked if they had discussion about
cleaning the trash on 69 Highway and Mr. Stokes answered they did not discuss that.

Commissioner Wood stated he disagrees with Mr. Stokes ideas for cleaning up the trash
and that he believes the people littering and the landfill should be responsible for cleaning
up. Commissioner Moody stated he agrees with both Mr. Stokes and also Commissioner

Page 2 of 7



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Wood. Mr. Stokes provided the Commissioners with contact information for Stella
Environmental Services.

PUBLIC HEARINGS AND OPENING OF ANNOUNCED BIDS

Item One: Public Hearing on Vacating Platted Streets in Gross’ 1st Addition, Crawford
County, Kansas.

On motion (25-057) of Commissioner Blair and the second of Commissioner Wood to
open the Public Hearing on Vacating Platted Streets in Gross’ 1% Addition, Crawford
County, Kansas.

Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Blair and Wood

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

There was no public comment.

On motion (25-058) of Commissioner Blair and the second of Commissioner Wood to
close the Public Hearing on Vacating Platted Streets in Gross’ 1% Addition, Crawford
County, Kansas.

Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Blair and Wood

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

County Counselor Jim Emerson presented Resolution #2025-003, a Resolution closing
and vacating certain platted streets in Gross’ 1% Addition to Gross, Crawford County,
Kansas. He provided information regarding this resolution and that there was no
comment regarding this.

On motion (25-059) of Commissioner Blair and the second of Commissioner Moody to
adopt Resolution #2025-003, a Resolution #2025-003, a Resolution closing and vacating
certain platted streets in Gross’ 1% Addition to Gross, Crawford County, Kansas

Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Blair, and Wood

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

MESSAGES FROM THE PUBLIC CONTINUED

Item Three: Mr. Bob Davis, President/CEO of Class LTD, addressed the
Commissioners. He stated he is here to discuss mill levy funds. Mr. Davis stated if all the
mill levy funding went towards Special Olympics Kansas some of their population would
miss out on funding as they do not all participate in Special Olympics. He stated they

Page 3 of 7



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

would like to form a work group to come up with an equitable solution to this problem if
they would allow it. Commissioner Moody stated they are always open to hear solutions.
Commissioner Wood asked if Mr. Davis has any statistics or proof of what they take care
of with mill levy funding and Mr. Davis stated he could give some statistics today.
Commissioner Moody discussed Mr. Davis giving updates every so often depending on
their decision and direction that they go in. Commissioner Wood asked if their office is in
Crawford County and Mr. Davis explained their administrative office is in Columbus,
Kansas but that they have a service center in Pittsburg located in the industrial park.
Commissioner Wood asked how Class LTD gets their funding and Mr. Davis explained
they do bill Medicaid for their services but that it is not a substantial amount.
Commissioner Wood asked about client housing and Mr. Davis answered. The
Commissioners thanked Mr. Davis for coming today.

Item Four: Ms. Shari Coatney, President/CEO of SKIL, addressed the Commissioners.
She answered some of the questions regarding the number of clients that benefit from
mill levy funding. Ms. Coatney also explained self-directed care for clients. She
mentioned she only has two or three clients who participate in Special Olympics and that
they are actually from Labette County not Crawford County. Ms. Coatney mentioned she
supports Special Olympics but that she does not believe the mill levy funding should be
used to support that. Commissioner Wood asked about the total number of clients SKIL
has in Crawford County and Ms. Coatney answered. Commissioner Wood asked where
SKIL’s office is in Crawford County and Ms. Coatney explained. Commissioner Wood
asked if any of SKIL’s clients come to their facility and Ms. Coatney explained they are
only independent living. Ms. Coatney explained they are also not for profit and that they
bill Medicaid like Class LTD does. Commissioner Wood asked the age group that SKIL
serves and Ms. Coatney explained they serve anyone from birth to death. Commissioner
Wood asked if the communities help support SKIL and Ms. Coatney explained Crawford
County is the only county that provides SKIL with funding.

Item Five: Ms. Rosie West addressed the Commissioners. She stated she is the Director
of New Hope Services in Pittsburg. She discussed the number of clients they have that
participate in Special Olympics. Ms. West discussed some of the services they provide to
their clients to keep them active. She also stated she believes a work group would be a
great idea. Commissioner Wood asked where New Hope Services is located in Crawford
County and Ms. West explained. Commissioner Wood asked about the number of people
they are serving in Crawford County and Ms. West answered it is 103. Mr. Travis
McBride, Regional Vice President with Medicalodges, addressed the Commissioners. He
discussed the New Hope Services location briefly. He discussed the funding they spend
on Special Olympics on the 40 to 43 clients that participate from New Hope Services.
Mr. McBride discussed spending of mill levy funding. He stated he does not believe they
can move forward with these fundings without some guidance on what these funds
should be used on and where they should be used. Commissioner Moody stated he
believes previously they asked for the Crawford County dollars to stay in Crawford
County and benefit those living in Crawford County. Commissioner Moody stated he
believes they need to have some discussion amongst themselves to decide how they
would like to see this money spent. Commissioner Wood asked if any of the clients stay
over night for New Hope Services and Mr. McBride explained. Commissioner Wood
asked about the spending of the money previously and Mr. McBride explained.

Page 4 of 7



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Commissioner Wood asked Mr. Emerson if he would be involved in the meeting of these
facilities and he agreed.

Item Six: Mr. Scott Hines, CEO of Medicalodges, addressed the Commissioners. He
stated he just wanted to make himself available for any questions regarding Medicalodges
and New Hope Services.

NEW BUSINESS

Item One: County Clerk Lisa Lusker stated she would like to set a date to go over
Special Funding Requests in a work session. She mentioned she would have them
available next week to provide to the Commissioners to look over first.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Item One: County Counselor Jim Emerson requested an executive session for 20 minutes
to discuss Non-Elected Personnel.

On motion (25-060) of Commissioner Blair and the second of Commissioner Moody to
recess this open meeting and go into a closed executive session for 20 minutes to discuss
the job description duties for Emergency Management pursuant to the non-elected
personnel exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(1), to protect the privacy of the individual
employees. The County Commissioners, County Counselor Jim Emerson, and
Emergency Manager Quinton Parsons attended the executive session. The open meeting
will resume at 11:26 AM. The Motion passed 3-0.

Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Blair and Wood

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

The Commissioners went into Executive Session at 11:06 AM and reconvened the
Open Session at 11:26 AM with no action taken except to go back into open session.

NEW BUSINESS CONTINUED

Item Two: Mr. Emerson provided the Commissioners with the FY 2027 High Risk Rural
Roads (HRRR) project funding request. He explained this project and the reasoning for
this project request to the Commissioners. Commissioner Moody clarified that the
county’s portion is $269,000 and Mr. Emerson stated that is what they have listed but that
there may be additional expense depending on the pavement.

On motion (25-061) of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair to
approve the FY 2027 High Risk Rural Roads Project Funding Request and authorizing
the Chairman to sign.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood, Blair, and Moody

Page 5 of 7



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Nays

Present but not voting:
Absent or not voting:
The motion prevailed.

Item Three: Commissioner Blair discussed an upcoming culvert change out in Chicopee.

Item Four: Commissioner Wood stated he and Mr. Emerson looked at this basement this
morning and that a ton of things need cleaned out of it. He stated he would like each
district to furnish a man to help with this. Commissioner Moody asked if our
Maintenance Department cannot take care of this. Commissioner Wood stated he will
look into getting a dumpster for this. Mr. Emerson asked Ms. Lusker to send an email to
all the departments to inform them to tag what they would like to keep and what they are
wanting to get rid of.

Item Five: Commissioner Wood brought up dust control and that he would like to go out
for bid on this sooner rather than later. Commissioner Moody stated there are places in
the county that they do the dust control as well.

Item Six: Commissioner Wood stated he would like to convert the space next to the
Zoning office into an office for Courthouse Maintenance Aaron Crozier. Commissioner
Moody stated he is not opposed to this but that he is not there yet. Commissioner Wood
clarified he is just wanting him to have a space here at the Courthouse. Commissioner
Moody stated Maintenance Director Robert Gorentz could utilize this office too so it
could be made for them to share. Commissioner Moody mentioned maybe selling some
of the exercise equipment that sits in that office.

Item Seven: Commissioner Wood stated he thinks they need to get an inventory on their
culverts and make sure they balance out. He mentioned they need to get something set up
for bidding on the culverts.

OLD BUSINESS

Item One: Commissioner Wood stated he visited with Foreman Josh Peak about the
warranty on the new tractor purchased from Heritage.

Item Two: Commissioner Moody stated he received a text from the Sheriff stating he
pulled over another trash truck today with a driver who did not have a CDL license.

Item Three: Commissioner Moody mentioned he received a few phone calls from 4
State Mechanical who is scheduled to go look at the job being done at the jail. He stated
he and Mr. Emerson will speak with them after the meeting to see what they found
regarding the project.

UNDER THE HEADING FUTURE BUSINESS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
FUTURE BUSINESS:

Page 6 of 7



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Item One: February 4, 2025- Mr. Joshua Albin discussing survey distribution.
ANNOUNCEMENTS:

Item One: February 6, 2025- County Day at the Capitol from 8:00 AM to 2:00 P.M. All
three Commissioners may be in attendance.

Item Two: February 7, 2025- The Regular Session of the Board of County
Commissioners is cancelled due to lack of quorum.

UNDER THE HEADING MOTION TO ADJOURN
MOTION TO ADJOURN
Item One: Adjournment

On the motion of Commissioner Blair and the second of Commissioner Wood to adjourn
the January 31, 2025 meeting of the Board of Crawford County Commissioners at 11:43
AM and to reconvene at the next regularly scheduled time with open doors.

Yeas: Commissioners Blair, Wood and Moody

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

In Testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed my
official seal and submitted these minutes for the approval of the Board of Crawford
County Commissioners.

Lisa Lusker
County Clerk

<>

This submission completed at the Crawford County Courthouse in Girard.
Taken RJA 1/31/2024 9:00 AM

Page 7 of 7



